

General Board Meeting Minutes

Tuesday, July 8, 2014 at Shepherd of the Hills Church, 19700 Rinaldi St., Porter Ranch, CA 91326

1. Welcome

President Paula Cracium called the Meeting to order at 6:03 p.m.

2. Roll Call

Board Members introduced themselves: Paula Cracium (President), Pat Pope (Vice-President), Eric Nam (Secretary), Sean O'Rourke (Treasurer 1), Sue Hammarlund, Alex Kim, Ashiley Lee, Cindy Lee and Becky Leveque. Nine of the 11 Board Members were present at the beginning of the Meeting. Board Members absent: Ethan Turer (Treasurer 2) and Anthony Park. The PRNC quorum (the minimum number of Board Members needing to be present to take binding votes on Agendized Items) is seven (see http://empowerla.org/wp-content/uploads/2012/06/PorterRanchNC-Bylaws.pdf), so the Board could take such votes. All 11 of the 11 Board Seats were filled. No Board Seats were vacant. Also attending: 32 Stakeholders and guests.

3. Minutes Approval

MOTION (by Mr. Nam, seconded by Ms. Hammarlund): The Porter Ranch Neighborhood Council approves the Minutes of its June 3, 2014 General Board Meeting as written.

MOTION to CALL FOR THE QUESTION (by Ms. Cracium); there was no objection.

MOTION PASSED by a roll call vote of eight of the nine eligible voters present with seven in favor ("Yes" or "Aye") (Hammarlund, Kim, Ashiley Lee, Cindy Lee, Leveque, Nam and O'Rourke); one abstained (Pope). [Presidents/Presiding Officers can choose whether or not to vote.]

4. <u>Treasurer's Report</u> -- Treasurer 1, Sean O'Rourke

Mr. O'Rourke reported that the City checking account system for Neighborhood councils soon will start. He distributed and reviewed the "[PRNC] Profit and Loss Budget vs. Actual July 2014 through June 2015" and the "Monthly Expenditure Report for June" 2014. "Balance of Budget" as of June 30th was \$346.07 that the City took back. He will bring an equipment inventory list that the Board needs to approve by September 1st.

5. <u>Motion</u> – Treasurer 1, Sean O'Rourke: Motion to approve budget report.

FUNDING MOTION (by Mr. O'Rourke, seconded by Ms. Hammarlund): the Porter Ranch Neighborhood Council approves the June 2014 Treasurer's Report as presented.

MOTION to CALL FOR THE QUESTION (by Ms. Cracium); there was no objection.

FUNDING MOTION PASSED unanimously by a roll call vote of seven of the eight eligible voters present with all seven in favor ("Yes" or "Aye") (Hammarlund, Kim, Cindy Lee, Leveque, Nam, O'Rourke and Pope). [Presidents/Presiding Officers can choose whether or not to vote; if they don't a vote can still be unanimous.] Ashiley Lee was ineligible to vote due to not yet being of age (18) to vote on financial matters.

6. Community / Governmental Updates and Announcements

Ron Rubine, Field Deputy for L.A. City District 12 Councilman Mitch Englander (818-882-1212; Ron.Rubine@LACity.org), introduced Colin Crews, Field Deputy for L.A. City District 12 Councilman Mitch Englander (818-882-1212; Colin.Crews@LACity.org; http://CD12.LACity.org), who will be reporting to the PRNC. Mr. Rubine reported that the Councilman arranged to have an ambulance donated to a local group. The City Council voted to ban fracking in Los Angeles.

David Meza, SoCal Gas Co. Public Affairs Manager (213.244.4634; DMeza@semprautilities.com), announced a July 15th community meeting to update on construction progress for the Aliso Canyon Turbine Replacement Project. They are widening the access road from Sesnon and Tampa and improving the security gate. He clarified that Termo is "not on our property." The Gas Co. is outreaching through four HOA newsletters and "also going door-to-door" where it is allowed; he said "we do email blasts" as do CD12 and the County. Ms. Cracium requested and Mr. Meza agreed to help distribute maps.

Andre Hollings, Field Representative for State 38th District Assemblymember Scott Wilk, (661-286-1565; Andre Hollings@asm.ca.gov; https://ad38.assemblygop.com), reported that "the State Budget was passed June 15th" and that the Assemblyman "voted against the Budget." He will relay Board Members' concerns about reduced school funding. Ms. Leveque requested and Mr. Hollings agreed to have election signs removed.

Mary Kaufman of Corral 54 gave an update was given on the proposed stoplight on Eddleston Dr. "where the trail comes out of Aliso Canyon . . . it's dangerous . . . for anybody" including equestrians and hikers; "the speed limit is 50 miles per hour." She said "the Chatsworth Neighborhood Council" has written a letter to request it." Ms. Kaufman indicated that authorities would only consider installing a four-way stoplight. Mr. Nam suggested forming an ad hoc Committee to study this. It was agreed to form the ad hoc Eddleston Dr. Committee with Mr. Nam as Chair and

Cindy Lee, Alex Kim, Anthony Park, Pat Pope, Armando Nunez and Al Cohen as members.

7. <u>Motion</u> - Becky Leveque: Motion: I move that [see the below Motion].

Ms. Leveque explained that PRCS includes a Community Room "for all of Porter Ranch" that was intended for such uses. Also, "they're going to provide us a room to store our supplies . . . it is free."

MOTION (by Ms. Leveque, seconded by Mr. Nam): Porter Ranch Neighborhood Council Meetings will be moved to the Community Room at Porter Ranch Community School beginning in August of 2014.

DISCUSSION: Ms. Leveque reported that the next 12 first Tuesday nights are available and "parking is not a problem."

MOTION to CALL FOR THE QUESTION (by Ms. Cracium); there was no objection.

MOTION PASSED unanimously by a roll call vote of eight of the nine eligible voters present with all eight in favor ("Yes" or "Aye") (Hammarlund, Kim, Ashiley Lee, Cindy Lee, Leveque, Nam, O'Rourke and Pope). [Presidents/Presiding Officers can choose whether or not to vote; if they don't a vote can still be unanimous.]

8. Motion - Becky Leveque: Motion: [see below].

MOTION (by Ms. Leveque, seconded by Ms. Hammarlund): The Porter Ranch Neighborhood Council monthly meetings will be held the first Wednesday night of the month beginning August 6th. That way they will not interfere with holidays, election days, Porter Ranch Basic Car meetings and the BONC meetings. The meetings will be more consistent.

DISCUSSION: Ms. Leveque reported there are few if any holidays on Wednesdays.

MOTION to CALL FOR THE QUESTION (by Ms. Cracium); there was no objection.

MOTION PASSED unanimously by a roll call vote of eight of the nine eligible voters present with all eight in favor ("Yes" or "Aye") (Hammarlund, Kim, Ashiley Lee, Cindy Lee, Leveque, Nam, O'Rourke and Pope). [Presidents/Presiding Officers can choose whether or not to vote; if they don't a vote can still be unanimous.]

9. <u>Motion</u> – Vice President, Pat Pope: Motion [see below]. [*This Agenda Item was addressed after Item #21.*] Mr. Pope described the items' outreach use.

FUNDING MOTION (by Mr. Pope, seconded by Mr. O'Rourke): The Porter Ranch Neighborhood Council approves up to \$200 to purchase earthquake and emergency safety promotional items to be given out at the LAPD 17A23 Neighborhood Watch meetings between August, 2014 and June, 2015. The \$200 will include the cost of labeling the items Courtesy of YOUR Porter Ranch Neighborhood Council.

DISCUSSION: Mr. Pope reported that Neighborhood Watch meetings are well-attended and that the \$200 would be for the entire year's supplies from SOS Survival Products.

MOTION to CALL FOR THE QUESTION (by Ms. Cracium); there was no objection.

FUNDING MOTION PASSED unanimously by a roll call vote of seven of the eight eligible voters present with all seven in favor ("Yes" or "Aye") (Hammarlund, Kim, Cindy Lee, Leveque, Nam, O'Rourke and Pope). [Presidents/Presiding Officers can choose whether or not to vote; if they don't a vote can still be unanimous.] Ashiley Lee was ineligible to vote due to not yet being of age (18) to vote on financial matters.

10. Motion - Secretary, Eric Nam: Motion [see below].

Mr. Nam explained the usefulness of Board Members having more time to consider Agenda Items. Ms. Cracium explained that most Motions are submitted after the draft Agenda is distributed.

MOTION (by Mr. Nam, seconded by Mr. Kim): The Porter Ranch Neighborhood Council will require any Motion or Agenda item requests to be cc'd to all NC board members, thus allowing ample time for members to formulate questions, thoughts, or comments.

MOTION to CALL FOR THE QUESTION (by Ms. Cracium); there was no objection.

MOTION PASSED unanimously by a roll call vote of eight of the nine eligible voters present with all eight in favor ("Yes" or "Aye") (Hammarlund, Kim, Ashiley Lee, Cindy Lee, Leveque, Nam, O'Rourke and Pope). [Presidents/Presiding Officers can choose whether or not to vote; if they don't a vote can still be unanimous.]

11. Motion - Secretary, Eric Nam: Motion [see below].

Mr. Nam explained that an Environmental Impact Report "may not be required unless it is urged by the community . . . Termo is the oil company." Mr. Pope said that Termo "admitted they have fracked in the hills above us." Mr. Nam volunteered to draft the letter.

MOTION (by Mr. Nam, seconded by Mr. Kim): The Porter Ranch Neighborhood Council will draft a preliminary letter to the Los Angeles County Department of Regional Planning office, and any other relevant entity, requesting an Environmental Impact Report ("EIR") be conducted on Termo Company's application to expand their Aliso Canyon oil drilling interests.

MOTION to CALL FOR THE QUESTION (by Ms. Cracium); there was no objection.

MOTION PASSED unanimously by a roll call vote of eight of the nine eligible voters present with all eight in favor ("Yes" or "Aye") (Hammarlund, Kim, Ashiley Lee, Cindy Lee, Leveque, Nam, O'Rourke and Pope). [Presidents/Presiding Officers can choose whether or not to vote; if they don't a vote can still be unanimous.]

12. Motion – Alex Kim: Motion [see below].

Ms. Cracium noted that this Item conflicts with Item #15. Mr. Kim explained that he checked with DONE and other Neighborhood Councils, who "spend about \$300 per month."

FUNDING MOTION (by Mr. Kim, seconded by Mr. Nam): The Porter Ranch Neighborhood Council will limit PRNC expenses for website management not to exceed \$300 per month.

DISCUSSION: A "Results of Communications Services Delivered" handout from Moore Business Results was distributed. Mr. Pope said "we need more outreach, not less." There was discussion of for what the funding is and could be used. PRNC Webmaster Wendy Moore of Moore Business Results showed slides and described that another website administrator provides "content that's not about you." She said she provides "desktop and mobile platforms" with "consistent branding" about "what people are looking for," including content provided that "looks like an app" without having to spend to develop one. She noted that "we have translation into 14 languages" and are being considered by DONE for a website design award. She stated that "we have a thousand people a month going to our website" and "we're getting great coverage" in other local media. She confirmed that "these articles . . . are reviewed by both Paula [Cracium] and Shawn" [O'Rourke] and indicated that they continue to request her to write and post articles and information on the website; she does not do any work that they have not asked her to do. She described communications through the website, Facebook and Twitter. It was noted that PRNC Meetings often have much higher than average attendance compared to other Neighborhood Councils' Meetings. There was extensive discussion about PRNC website management, outreach and communications effectiveness. Many Board Members and Stakeholders expressed appreciation for Ms. Moore's work. Ms. Cracium stated that "the number one responsibility of Neighborhood Councils is outreach . . . and to inform the community."

MOTION to TABLE (by Mr. Kim, seconded by Mr. Nam).

MOTION to TABLE PASSED unanimously by a roll call vote of eight of the nine eligible voters present with all eight in favor ("Yes" or "Aye") (Hammarlund, Kim, Ashiley Lee, Cindy Lee, Leveque, Nam, O'Rourke and Pope). [Presidents/Presiding Officers can choose whether or not to vote; if they don't a vote can still be unanimous.]

13. Motion – Alex Kim: Motion [see below].

Mr. Nam and Ms. Leveque reported that the Committee is "trying to find out" more information about Termo's plans and operations, and possibly to request within 30 days of Termo's Application that they submit an Environmental Impact Report [EIR].

MOTION (by Mr. Kim, seconded by Cindy Lee): The Porter Ranch Neighborhood Council will call for a Land Use Committee meeting within 30 days from July 8 at PRCS to give all Stakeholders a chance to hear from Antonovich's office on current status of Termo application process.

DISCUSSION: There was discussion of the appropriateness of the Motion.

MOTION WITHDRAWN (by Mr. Kim and Cindy Lee).

14. Motion – Alex Kim: Motion [see below].

FUNDING MOTION (by Mr. Kim, seconded by Ms. Leveque): the Porter Ranch Neighborhood Council will provide funding up to \$1000 for flyers and other off line material to reach out to Stakeholders on the Town Hall meeting on Termo issue.

DISCUSSION: Mr. O'Rourke noted "we typically spend between \$150 and \$200" on event fliers.

AMENDED FUNDING MOTION (by Mr. Kim, seconded by Ms. Leveque): the Porter Ranch Neighborhood Council will provide funding up to \$500 for flyers and other off line material to reach out to Stakeholders on the Town Hall meeting on Termo issue, including newspapers such as the Valley Voice, the Daily News, the Daily Sundial and the North Valley Connection.

MOTION to CALL FOR THE QUESTION (by Ms. Cracium); there was no objection.

AMENDED FUNDING MOTION FAILED by a roll call vote of seven of the eight eligible voters present with two in favor ("Yes" or "Aye") (Hammarlund, Nam); four opposed ("No" or "Nay") (Kim, Leveque, O'Rourke and Pope); one abstained (Cindy Lee). [Presidents/Presiding Officers can choose whether or not to vote.] Ashiley Lee was ineligible to vote due to not yet being of age (18) to vote on financial matters.

MOTION to CALL FOR THE QUESTION (by Ms. Cracium); there was no objection.

ORIGINAL FUNDING MOTION PASSED by a roll call vote of all eight eligible voters present with four in favor ("Yes" or "Aye") (Cracium, Kim, Leveque, Nam); three opposed ("No" or "Nay") (Hammarlund, O'Rourke and Pope); one abstained (Cindy Lee). Ashiley Lee was ineligible to vote due to not yet being of age (18) to vote on financial matters.

15. Motion – Treasurer 1, Sean O'Rourke: Motion [see below].

FUNDING MOTION (by Mr. O'Rourke, seconded by Mr. Pope): The Porter Ranch Neighborhood Council will renew web and media relations with Moore Business Results for 2014 - 2015 year not to exceed \$9000.

DISCUSSION: Mr. O'Rourke noted that "last year her contract was \$8,000" and described advantages of working with Moore Business Results.

MOTION to CALL FOR THE QUESTION (by Ms. Cracium); there was no objection.

FUNDING MOTION PASSED by a roll call vote of seven of the eight eligible voters present with six in favor ("Yes" or "Aye") (Hammarlund, Cindy Lee, Leveque, Nam, O'Rourke and Pope); one opposed (Kim). [Presidents/Presiding Officers can choose whether or not to vote; if they don't a vote can still be unanimous.] Ashiley Lee was ineligible to vote due to not yet being of age (18) to vote on financial matters.

16. <u>Discussion</u> - Secretary, Eric Nam: [see the below Motion]. Also, further discussion of establishing other committees as needed.
Ms. Cracium explained how Committees can be formed according to the PRNC Bylaws. Mr. Nam added that "it's absolutely essential to form this Committee" since a number of land use projects are happening and planned in the area.

MOTION (by Mr. Nam, seconded by Ms. Leveque): the Porter Ranch Neighborhood Council establishes a standing Land Use Committee in accordance with PRNC Bylaws Article VII.

MOTION to CALL FOR THE QUESTION (by Ms. Cracium); there was no objection.

MOTION PASSED unanimously by a roll call vote of eight of the nine eligible voters present with all eight in favor ("Yes" or "Aye") (Hammarlund, Kim, Ashiley Lee, Cindy Lee, Leveque, Nam, O'Rourke and Pope). [Presidents/Presiding Officers can choose whether or not to vote; if they don't a vote can still be unanimous.]

It was agreed that Mr. Nam will Chair the Land Use Committee.

17. <u>Discussion</u> – President, Paula Cracium: Approval of PRNC events Ms. Cracium reminded that sponsorship of PRNC events first needs to be approved by the Board.

- 18. <u>Discussion</u> President, Paula Cracium: On August 6th, 2014, a Small Asphalt Repairs (SAR) truck is scheduled to be in the Porter Ranch Neighborhood Council District to perform repairs (see attached FAQ). They are requesting nominations for the program. In case of inclement weather, the work will be postponed. Mr. Nam explained this.
- **19.** <u>Update</u> -- President, Paula Cracium: Update on PRNC Planning Retreat. Ms. Cracium updated about this.

20. Sue Hammarlund introduction.

Ms. Hammarlund introduced Deborah Wong [see below].

21. <u>Special Guests</u>: Deborah Wong, P.E., Deputy District 7 Director, Division of maintenance will address the dying trees, watering along the 118 FWY and how they are dealing with the beetles.

Ms. Wong distributed copies of a list of "Replacement trees for Rte. 118 between Topanga Cyn. To Rte. 118/210" and reported that "around a hundred dead trees" were removed. Starting in March more will be removed and replaced with native trees. They are spending less on planting smaller rather than larger trees and are increasing reclaimed water use. They can "arrange a closure" to accommodate freeway ramp cleanups.

22. Public Comments

Rajan Alagh, owner of the Subway sandwich store at 19300 Rinaldi St., Suite D. (818.368.4432; RajanSubway@live.com) was concerned that the gas station being constructed at the corner of Tampa and Rinaldi blocks the view of stores in that shopping center. He offered for the PRNC to put fliers in his store.

23. Future meetings

Ms. Cracium noted this.

24. Motion to adjourn

Ms. Cracium declared and it was agreed to ADJOURN the Meeting at 9:16 p.m.

Minutes written by DL.